
 
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 
 Venue The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre,  

Catherine Street, Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ  
 Date: Monday, 8th August, 2022 
 Time: 11.00 am 
 Contact Officer: Jackie O'Reilly             Tel: 01946 598335 

 
 
  

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 
 

 
 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2022 
 

1 - 4 
 

4.   Review of Hackney Carriage Vehicle Table of Fares 5 - 12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership: Councillors Linda Jones-Bulman (Chair), Peter Tyson (Deputy Chair), 
David Banks, James Date, Jeanette Forster, Mike Hawkins, Sam Meteer, Brian O'Kane, 
Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme and Carl Walmsley 
 
 
Contacts: Direct Dial: 07385 362806 
 E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk 
 Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 23 MAY 2022 
 

Present: Councillors Linda Jones-Bulman, in the Chair; Peter Tyson, David Banks, 
James Date, Sam Meteer, Andy Pratt and Russell Studholme 
 
Officers: Jackie O'Reilly (Head of Public Protection) and Rose Blaney (Democratic 
Services Officer (Scrutiny)) 
 
 

LIC 22/1 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Carl Walmsley and Michaela Peet 
(Assistant Solicitor). 
 

LIC 22/2 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:  
 
There were no Declarations of Interest received. 
 

LIC 22/3 Minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2022  
 
The Committee reviewed the minutes of the last meeting. The Democratic 
Services Officer noted that there was a clerical error that needed amending. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2022 be signed 
by the Chair as a correct record subject to the clerical amendment. 
 

LIC 22/4 Election of Sub Committee Chairs  
 
The following Councillors were nominated as Licensing Sub-Committee Chairs: 
 

Councillor Sam Meteer (seconded by Councillor Andy Pratt) 
Councillor Peter Tyson (seconded by Councillor Russell Studholme) 
   

RESOLVED:- that the above nominations for Licensing Sub-Committee Chairs be 
agreed. 
 

LIC 22/5 Gambling Policy Consultation  
 
The Head of Public Protection presented the report to the Committee. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Councillor James Date noted that the map of Millom (Appendix 9) was incorrect 
with the betting shop on the corner of Wellington Street was no longer there. 
The Public Protection Manager noted the error and guaranteed the appendix 
would be updated before the report is published for Full Council. 
 
RESOLVED: - That: 
 

a) The Committee considers the responses to the statutory consultation. 
b) The Committee approves the revised draft policy and recommends to 

Council to adopt the Policy at the next available Council meeting with the 
required updates. 

 
LIC 22/6 Review of Hackney Carriage Fares  

 
The Public Protection introduced the report to the Committee and invited Ken 
Banks and Wilf Sibson, representatives from the Taxi Trade Association (TTA) to 
share their views and provide information. 
 
Clarifications were sought as to the dates included within Tariff 3, the fuel prices 
highlighted in paragraphs 1.4 and 1.5 and what happens post Vesting Day (1st 
April 2023) moving from Copeland to Cumberland. The Head of Public 
Protection answered that the dates were correct and that the decimal point had 
been put in the wrong place and that this would be amended. She also noted 
that, there is an urgent need now for changes to be made, but that it will be up 
to the new authority to determine their rates.  
 
The officer then presented their report, highlighting the tables with the current 
fares, tariffs, and extra charges of all Cumbrian authorities. She also highlighted 
the three options being proposed and noted that the representatives were 
proposing information that could be discussed as a fourth option. 
 
The TTA representatives provided the Committee with their views on the 
proposed options, further information to be discussed as a possible fourth 
option and their own personal views on aspects of the proposals, including the 
proposed change to times in the morning (from 7am to 6am) with them 
preferring it to remain at 6am as there are many who travel to work booking at 
6am which are at Tariff 1, not the high rate of Tariff 2, as in other areas. 
 
Councillor Sam Meteer wondered who asked for the review and whether the 
proposal needed reworked. The Public Protection Manager noted that while the 
review was requested by the TTA, it was also planned as the last review had 
been conducted in 2013. She also commented that there needed to be a 14-day 
consultation period before the changes could be implemented, so an option was 

Page 2



needed soon. The Committee therefore agreed to hold a discussion, once the 
TTA representatives had left, to discuss the option they would like to propose to 
undergo consultation. 
 
The Committee proceeded to have a discussion around all three options and the 
changes to tariffs proposed within the report to create a fourth option. The 
Public Protection Manager agreed to draft the fourth option for the Committee 
to confirm electronically. Once it has been confirmed as the preferred option by 
the Committee, the option will go out for public consultation in time for the 
results of the consultation to be heard at the next meeting in June. 
 
RESOLVED: - That the Public Protection Manager will draft the fourth option for 
confirmation by the Committee before it is then put out for public consultation. 
 

LIC 22/7 Date and Time of Next Meeting:  
 
The next meeting of the Licensing Committee will be held on Wednesday 29 
June 2022 at 10:30am in The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, Whitehaven. 
 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 11.50 am  
 

 
Chair 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



LC 08.08.2022  
 
Review of Hackney Carriage Vehicle Table of Fares  
 
Executive Member   Non Executive Function  
 
Lead Officer    Jackie O’Reilly  
     Head of Public Protection  
Report Author    Jackie O'Reilly 
 
 
Report to review the responses on the consultation of Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
Table of Fares and the options for determining the 2022 Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
Table of Fares.    
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Council has responsibility under the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, for setting the maximum fares that can be charged by 
hackney carriage vehicles licensed to operate within the borough.  
Consultation with the trade and public consultation on changes are required. 

1.2 The Licensing Committee agreed the public consultation of a revised table of 
fares on 23rd May 2022.  The Table of Fares consulted on are detailed in 
Appendix 1 with current Table of Fares provided in Appendix 2 

1.3 Consultation required the display of a Public Notice in a local newspaper 
setting out the proposed fares and a consultation period of a minimum of 14 
days before any changes can take effect.   

1.4 Objections were received and not withdrawn, details of the objections are 
covered in section 2.   

1.5 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 requires that 
where an objection is made and not withdrawn then a further date (not more 
than two months after the closing date of the consultation) must be set for 
the Licensing Committee to review the objections and determine whether to 
implement the Table of Fares as consulted on or agree modifications.  From 
this date the Table of Fares will come into force with or without modification 
once the objections have been considered. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



1.6 The constitution delegates the matter to the Licensing Committee and further 
consultation is not required.  

1.7  The table of fares applies only to Hackney Carriage vehicles.  Private Hire 
Operators are able to agree their hiring charges in advance with their 
customers at the time of booking the journey.  

1.5  The Private Hire and Taxi Monthly (PHTM), a national taxi trade publication, 
produces a monthly league table of all hackney carriage fares for a 2 mile 
journey at Tariff 1 (day) rates.   

In May 2022 the national average rate for a 2 mile journey Tariff 1 was £6.24.  
The consulted on Tariff 1 rate for a 2 mile journey in Copeland was £6.22.  For 
comparison the rates for Cumbria are:  

 

Local Authority  2 mile Tariff 1 rate  Last increase  Rank out of 355 

Allerdale £5.45 – under review  2018 – under review 292 – may change  

Barrow £5.80 2022 228 

Carlisle  £6.60 2022 91 

Copeland £5.00 - proposed 
change to £6.22  

2013 – under review  330 – may change  

Eden  £6.60 2022 93 

South Lakeland  £6.40 – under review 2014 – under review  133 – may change 
 

(Source Byran Roland Memorial Table of Fares May 2022) 
 
2.0  CONSULTATION RESPONSES  

7 written responses 

3 support the proposed Table of Fares 

1 outright objection 

3 support the parts of the proposal but question the removal of Tariff 2 starting at 
6pm on the Friday before Christmas.  Follow up to the question raised in 
consultation reply confirmed that this questioning to be considered as an objection. 

1 of the 3 questioning the removal of the Tariff 2 rate from 6pm on the Friday 
before Christmas also raised a concern on the Christmas and New Year Tariff 3 rate.  

Social media comments on the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares consultation were 
positive and supported the proposed increase. 

Page 6



3.0 HACKNEY CARRIAGE TABLE OF FARES OPTIONS  

 
2.1 Option 1 – Increase the Table of Fares by the rate set in Appendix 1 the Public 

Notice consulted on rate  

2.2  Option 2 – Increase the Table of Fares set in Appendix 1 the Public Notice 
consulted on rate with the addition of the Friday before Christmas as a tariff 2 
rate from 6pm  

2.3 Option 3 – Increase the Table of Fares set in Appendix 1 the Public Notice 
consulted on rate as consulted on with the addition of additional Tariff 3 rate  

2.4 Option 4 – Combination of option 2 and 3, increase the Table of Fares set in 
Appendix 1 the Public Notice consulted on rate as consulted on with the 
addition of the Friday before Christmas as a tariff 2 rate from 6pm and revised 
Tariff 3 rate 

 
4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 Section 65 (1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
states that a district council may fix the rates or fares within the district as 
well for time as distance, and all other charges in connection with the hire of 
a vehicle or with the arrangements for the hire of a vehicle, to be paid in 
respect of the hire of hackney carriages by means of a table (hereafter in this 
section referred to as a “table of fares”) made or varied in accordance with 
the provisions of this section.  

4.2 Section 65(2) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
goes onto state:  

a) When a district council make or vary a table of fares they shall publish in 
at least one local newspaper circulating in the district a notice setting out the 
table of fares or the variation thereof and specifying the period, which shall 
not be less than fourteen days from the date of the first publication of the 
notice, within which and the manner in which objections to the table of fares 
or variation can be made.  

b) A copy of the notice referred to in paragraph (a) of this subsection shall for 
the period of fourteen days from the date of the first publication thereof be 
deposited at the offices of the council which published the notice, and shall 
at all reasonable hours be open to public inspection without payment  

If no objection to a table of fares or variation is duly made within the period 
specified in the notice referred to in section 65 (2), or if all objections so 
made are withdrawn, the table of fares or variation shall come into 
operation on the date of the expiration of the period specified in the notice 

Page 7



or the date of withdrawal of the objection or, if more than one, of the last 
objection, whichever date is the later.  

If objections are made and are not withdrawn, the district council must set a  

further date, not later than two months after the first specified date, on 
which the table of fares shall come into force with or without modifications 
as decided by them after consideration of the objections 

 
List of Appendices: Appendix 1 – Public Notice of Table of Fares Consultation (June 

2022)  
Appendix 2 - Table of Fares (20th August 2013) 
Appendix 2 - May 2022 Table of 2 mile Tariff 1 costs  

List of Background 
Documents: 

Licensing Committee (25052022)  
UK pump prices over time (racfoundation.org) 
Monthly and annual prices of road fuels and petroleum products - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) and table_411_413.xlsx (live.com) 

List of Consultees:  

 

Copeland – Tariff 1 

330 out of 350 

Page 8

https://www.racfoundation.org/data/uk-pump-prices-over-time
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/oil-and-petroleum-products-monthly-statistics
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/oil-and-petroleum-products-monthly-statistics
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fuploads%2Fsystem%2Fuploads%2Fattachment_data%2Ffile%2F1071698%2Ftable_411_413.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


             
            COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL       COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL 
TABLE OF FARES FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES    TABLE OF FARES FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES 
            EFFECTIVE FROM 20TH AUGUST 2013       EFFECTIVE FROM 20TH AUGUST 2013 

 
Tariff 1           Tariff 1 
For a distance not exceeding one mile    £ 3.00    For a distance not exceeding one mile    £ 3.00 
 
If the distance exceeds one mile, for the first mile   £ 3.00    If the distance exceeds one mile, for the first mile   £ 3.00 
 
For each subsequent 1/10th mile or        For each subsequent 1/10th mile or 
uncompleted part thereof     20 pence     uncompleted part thereof    20 pence 
 
Tariff 2           Tariff 2 
For hirings commenced between 11.00pm and 6.00am  add 50% to Tariff 1   For hirings commenced between 11.00pm and 6.00am  add 50% to Tariff 1 
             
For hirings commenced at any time on a Bank or Public  add 50% to the above  For hirings commenced at any time on a Bank or Public  add 50% to the above 
Holiday being Good Friday, Easter Sunday, Easter Monday, Tariff 1 rates   Holiday being Good Friday, Easter Sunday, Easter Monday, Tariff 1 rates 
May Day, Whitsuntide Monday, August Bank Holiday      May Day, Whitsuntide Monday, August Bank Holiday 
Monday & any other Bank or Public Holiday the Government     Monday & any other Bank or Public Holiday the Government  
may declare          may declare 

               
          
For hirings commenced between 6.00pm and   add 50% to Tariff 1   For hirings commenced between 6.00pm and   add 50% to Tariff 1 
6.00am on the Friday before Christmas        6.00am on the Friday before Christmas 
 
Tariff 3           Tariff 3 
For hirings commenced between 6.00pm on Christmas Eve £5.60 for 1st mile then for each   For hirings commenced between 6.00pm on Christmas Eve £5.60 for 1st mile then for each 
until 6.00am on 27th December and 6.00 pm on New Years  subsequent 1/10th mile or   until 6.00am on 27th December and 6.00pm on New Years  subsequent 1/10th mile or 
Eve until 6.00am on 2nd January    uncompleted part thereof    Eve until 6.00am on 2nd January    uncompleted part thereof 35 pence  
       35 pence 
Extra Charges          Extra Charges 
 
For each period of one minute or uncompleted part thereof 20 pence     For each period of one minute or uncompleted part thereof 20 pence 
    
For each mile or uncompleted part thereof within the    35 pence    For each mile or uncompleted part thereof within the  35 pence 
Borough of Copeland, travelled by the carriage to a hirer’s      Borough of Copeland, travelled by the carriage to a hirer’s 
“pick-up” point at a stated place other than a hackney carriage     “pick-up” point at a stated place other than a hackney carriage 
stand or the proprietor’s normal base of operation       stand or the proprietor’s normal base of operation  
 
For each person in excess of four    25% of the total fare  For each person in excess of four    25% of the total fare   

 
 
Soiling fee      £ 75.00    Soiling fee      £ 75.00 
  
The above rates of fare are applicable only to:       The above rates of fare are applicable only to: 
 
1. Journeys taken entirely within the district of Copeland.     1. Journeys taken entirely within the district of Copeland. 
2. Journeys ending outside the district of Copeland where no fare  or rate of   2. Journeys ending outside the district of Copeland where no fare or rate of 

fare is agreed in advance of such journey between hirer and driver.    fare is agreed in advance of such journey between hirer and driver. 
 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LC (08082022) Appendix 2 

 

  
 
 
 
COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL 
TABLE OF FARES FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES 
EFFECTIVE FROM 20TH AUGUST 2013 
 
Tariff 1       
For a distance not exceeding one mile     £ 3.00   
If the distance exceeds one mile, for the first mile    £ 3.00   
 
For each subsequent 1/10th mile or uncompleted part thereof   20 pence   
 
Tariff 2          
For hirings commenced between 11.00pm and 6.00am   add 50% to Tariff 1   
             
For hirings commenced at any time on a Bank or Public   add 50% to the above Tariff 1 rates  
  
Holiday being Good Friday, Easter Sunday, Easter Monday,     
May Day, Whitsuntide Monday, August Bank Holiday       
Monday & any other Bank or Public Holiday the Government      
may declare           
 
For hirings commenced between 6.00pm and 6.00am    add 50% to Tariff 1  
on the Friday before Christmas         
 
Tariff 3            
For hirings commenced between 6.00pm on Christmas Eve   £5.60 for 1st mile then for each  
until 6.00am on 27th December and 6.00 pm on New Years    subsequent 1/10th mile or  
Eve until 6.00am on 2nd January      uncompleted part thereof  35pence 
 
Extra Charges           
 
For each period of one minute or uncompleted part thereof   20 pence     
    
For each mile or uncompleted part thereof within the Borough of    35 pence     
Copeland, travelled by the carriage to a hirer’s “pick-up” point  
at a stated place other than a hackney carriage stand or the proprietors       
normal base of operation        
 
For each person in excess of four      25% of the total fare   
 
Soiling fee        £ 75.00     
  
The above rates of fare are applicable only to:        
 
1. Journeys taken entirely within the district of Copeland.      
2. Journeys ending outside the district of Copeland where no fare or rate of    
fare is agreed in advance of such journey between hirer and driver.    
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2022
	4 Review of Hackney Carriage Vehicle Table of Fares
	Appendix 1 (CBC Table of Fares - 20th August 2013)
	Tariff 1											Tariff 1
	Tariff 2											Tariff 2
	Tariff 3											Tariff 3


	LC (08082022) Appendix 2 CBC TABLE of FARES - 20TH AUGUST 2013


